INTERCONTINENTALEXCHANGE INC Form DEF 14A March 28, 2013 Table of Contents

#### **UNITED STATES**

## SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

## **SCHEDULE 14A**

**Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of** 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

	Filed b	y the	Registrant	X
--	---------	-------	------------	---

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant "

Check the appropriate box:

- " Preliminary Proxy Statement
- x Definitive Proxy Statement
- " Definitive Additional Materials
- " Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

" Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))

## INTERCONTINENTALEXCHANGE, INC.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

 $(Name\ of\ Person(s)\ Filing\ Proxy\ Statement,\ if\ other\ than\ the\ Registrant)$ 

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- x No fee required.
- Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.

(1)	Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
(2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
(3)	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
(4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
(5)	Total fee paid:
Fee	paid previously with preliminary materials.
	ck box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
(1)	Amount Previously Paid:
(2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
(3)	Filing Party:
(4)	Date Filed:

Persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB control number.

# INTERCONTINENTALEXCHANGE, INC. NOTICE OF 2013 ANNUAL MEETING

**AND** 

PROXY STATEMENT

March 28, 2013

#### Dear Stockholder:

On behalf of the Board of Directors and management of IntercontinentalExchange, Inc., I am pleased to invite you to the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Annual Meeting will be held at the St. Regis Atlanta, Eighty-Eight West Paces Ferry Road, Atlanta, GA 30305 on Friday, May 17, 2013 at 8:30 a.m., local time.

The attached Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement describe the formal business to be conducted at the Annual Meeting. Our Board of Directors and senior officers, as well as representatives from our independent registered public accounting firm, will be present to respond to appropriate questions from stockholders.

This year, for the first time, we are delivering proxy materials for the Annual Meeting under the Securities and Exchange Commission s Notice and Access rules. These rules permit us to furnish proxy materials, including the attached Proxy Statement and our 2012 Annual Report, to our stockholders by providing access to such documents on the Internet instead of mailing printed copies. The rules also allow us to help the environment by reducing the consumption of paper, energy, and other natural resources and to lower printing and distribution expenses paid by IntercontinentalExchange. Our stockholders will receive a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (the Notice), which provides instructions on how to access and review all of our proxy materials on the Internet, and will not receive printed copies unless they request them. The Notice also explains how you may submit your proxy on the Internet.

Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting, please complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card in the envelope provided or vote telephonically or electronically using the Internet voting procedures described on the proxy card at your earliest convenience.

Sincerely, Jeffrey C. Sprecher

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

IntercontinentalExchange, Inc.

## IntercontinentalExchange, Inc.

2100 RiverEdge Parkway, Suite 500

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

# NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD MAY 17, 2013

NOTICE HEREBY IS GIVEN that the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. will be held at the St. Regis Atlanta, Eighty-Eight West Paces Ferry Road, Atlanta, GA 30305 on Friday, May 17, 2013 at 8:30 a.m., local time, for the purposes of considering and voting upon:

- 1. The election of eleven directors to serve until the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders;
- 2. An advisory resolution on our executive compensation;
- 3. The approval of the 2013 Omnibus Employee Incentive Plan;
- 4. The approval of the 2013 Omnibus Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan;
- 5. The ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013; and
- 6. Such other business as properly may come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournments thereof. The Board of Directors is not aware of any other business to be presented to a vote of the stockholders at the Annual Meeting.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 19, 2013 as the record date for determining the stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting and any adjournments thereof.

If you hold your shares of common stock through a broker or nominee, you will need to bring either a copy of the voting instruction card provided by your broker or nominee or a copy of a brokerage statement showing your ownership as of March 19, 2013.

A list of stockholders entitled to vote at the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be available for inspection upon request of any stockholder for a purpose germane to the meeting at our principal executive offices, 2100 RiverEdge Parkway, Suite 500, Atlanta, Georgia 30328 during the ten days prior to the meeting, during ordinary business hours, and at the St. Regis Atlanta, Eighty-Eight West Paces Ferry

Road, Atlanta, GA 30305 during the meeting.

WHETHER OR NOT YOU EXPECT TO ATTEND, PLEASE SUBMIT YOUR PROXY WITH VOTING INSTRUCTIONS. YOU MAY VOTE BY TELEPHONE OR INTERNET (BY FOLLOWING THE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE PROXY CARD) OR BY MAIL IF YOU RECEIVED A PRINTED PROXY CARD.

By Order of the Board of Directors, Jeffrey C. Sprecher

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Atlanta, Georgia

March 28, 2013

#### Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials

#### for the Stockholder Meeting to be Held on May 17, 2013

This year, for the first time, we are sending a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (the Notice) to our stockholders rather than mailing a full paper set of the materials. The Notice contains instructions on how to access our proxy materials on the Internet and how to vote, as well as instructions on obtaining a paper copy of the proxy materials.

For additional information, see Voting Instructions and Information below.

#### To Vote by Internet and to Receive Materials Electronically

Read the Proxy Statement.

Go to the website www.proxyvote.com that appears on your proxy card.

Enter the control number found on the front of your proxy card and follow the simple instructions. Choose to receive an e-mail notice when proxy statements and annual reports are available for viewing over the Internet. You will cut down on bulky paper mailings, help the environment, and lower expenses paid by IntercontinentalExchange, Inc.

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<b>Page</b>
<u>INTRODUCTION</u>	1
VOTING INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION	1
Who can vote at the Annual Meeting?	1
What proposals will be voted on at the Annual Meeting?	1
How does the Board of Directors recommend I vote?	1
Who is a stockholder of record?	2
How can I view the stockholders list?	2
Why did I receive a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials instead of paper copies of the proxy materials?	2
What information does the Notice contain?	2
If I have previously indicated that I want to get ICE proxy materials electronically, will I get them electronically this year?	3
How do I vote?	3
What do I need to do to attend the Annual Meeting?	3
How can I revoke my proxy or substitute a new proxy or change my vote?	3
If I submit a proxy by Internet, telephone or mail, how will my shares be voted?	4
If I hold my shares in street name through a broker and do not provide voting instructions, can my broker still vote my shares?	4
How many votes are required to transact business at the Annual Meeting?	4
How are votes counted?	4
Where and when will the voting results be available?	5
Who pays for the expenses of this proxy solicitation?	6
Distribution of Certain Documents	6
ITEM 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	7
Board of Directors	7
Nominees for Election as Directors at the 2013 Annual Meeting	7
<u>Directors</u> Recommendation	14
Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors	14
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	16
Independent Non-Employee Directors	16
Nomination of Directors	16
Board Leadership Structure	17
Board Oversight of Risk	18
Board of Directors Governance Principles	18
Stockholder Recommendations for Director Candidates	19
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and Insider Trading Policy	20
Communications with the Board of Directors	20
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS	21
ITEM 2 ADVISORY RESOLUTION TO APPROVE EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	47
ITEM 3 APPROVAL OF THE INTERCONTINENTALEXCHANGE, INC. 2013 OMNIBUS EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLAN	47
ITEM 4 APPROVAL OF THE INTERCONTINENTALEXCHANGE, INC. 2013 OMNIBUS NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR INCENTIVE PLAN	55
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION	57
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	58

Table of Contents 9

i

## **Table of Contents**

	<b>Page</b>
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS Relationships with Our Stockholders Other	60 60 61
SECTION 16(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE	61
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT	61
TEM 5 RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013	62
INFORMATION ABOUT OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FEES AND SERVICES Audit and Non-Audit Fees	62 62
Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	63
INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE	63
STOCKHOLDERS PROPOSALS FOR 2014 ANNUAL MEETING	63
OTHER MATTERS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE ANNUAL MEETING	64
INTERCONTINENTALEXCHANGE, INC. 2013 OMNIBUS EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLAN	ANNEX A
INTERCONTINENTALEXCHANGE INC 2013 OMNIBUS NON-EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLAN	ANNEX B

ii

## IntercontinentalExchange, Inc.

2100 RiverEdge Parkway, Suite 500

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

#### PROXY STATEMENT

#### FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

#### **TO BE HELD MAY 17, 2013**

#### INTRODUCTION

This Proxy Statement is furnished to the stockholders of IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. in connection with the solicitation of proxies by our Board of Directors to be voted at the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and at any adjournments thereof (the Annual Meeting ). The Annual Meeting will be held at the St. Regis Atlanta, Eighty-Eight West Paces Ferry Road, Atlanta, GA 30305 on Friday, May 17, 2013 at 8:30 a.m., local time. The approximate date on which this Proxy Statement and form of proxy card are first being sent or given to stockholders is March 28, 2013.

When used in this Proxy Statement, the terms we, us, our, IntercontinentalExchange and ICE refer to IntercontinentalExchange, Inc.

#### VOTING INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION

#### Who can vote at the Annual Meeting?

The securities that can be voted at the Annual Meeting consist of our common stock, \$0.01 par value per share (the Common Stock). Each share of Common Stock entitles its holder to one vote on each matter submitted to the stockholders for approval. The holders of Common Stock will vote together as a single class on all matters presented to the stockholders for their vote or approval. The record date for determining the holders of Common Stock who are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting, or any adjournments thereof, was the close of business on March 19, 2013. On the record date, 72,761,715 shares of Common Stock were outstanding and eligible to be voted at the Annual Meeting.

#### What proposals will be voted on at the Annual Meeting?

There are five proposals to be considered and voted on at the meeting:

To elect eleven directors to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until their successors are duly elected and qualified;

An advisory resolution on our executive compensation;

To approve the Intercontinental Exchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Employee Incentive Plan;

To approve the Intercontinental Exchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan; and

To ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013.

You may also vote on any other business that properly comes before the Annual Meeting.

#### How does the Board of Directors recommend I vote?

Our Board of Directors unanimously recommends that you vote:

**FOR** each of the nominees to the Board of Directors.

1

**FOR** the executive compensation advisory vote.

FOR the approval of the Intercontinental Exchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Employee Incentive Plan.

FOR the approval of the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan.

**FOR** ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013.

#### Who is a stockholder of record?

During the ten days prior to the Annual Meeting, a list of the stockholders of record as of March 19, 2013 will be available for inspection as described below under *How can I view the stockholders list?*.

If you hold Common Stock that is registered in your name on the records of ICE maintained by its transfer agent, Computershare Investor Services, you are a stockholder of record; or

If you hold Common Stock indirectly through a broker, bank or similar institution, you are not a stockholder of record, but instead hold in street name.

If you are a stockholder of record, the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials described below is being sent to you directly. If you hold shares in street name, the Notice is being sent to you by the bank, broker or similar institution through which you hold your shares.

#### How can I view the stockholders list?

A list of the stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available for inspection upon request of any stockholder for a purpose germane to the meeting at our principal executive offices, 2100 RiverEdge Parkway, Suite 500, Atlanta, GA 30328, during ten days prior to the Annual Meeting, during ordinary business hours, and at the Annual Meeting. To make arrangements to review the list prior to the Annual Meeting, stockholders should contact our Investor Relations department at (770) 857-4700 or *ir@theice.com*.

#### Why did I receive a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials instead of paper copies of the proxy materials?

This year, pursuant to the SEC Notice and Access rules, we are furnishing our proxy materials to our stockholders over the Internet instead of mailing each of our stockholders paper copies of those materials. As a result, we will send our stockholders by mail or e-mail a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, which we refer to as the Notice, containing instructions on how to access our proxy materials over the Internet and how to vote. *The Notice is not a ballot or proxy card and cannot be used to vote your shares of Common Stock.* You will not receive paper copies of the proxy materials unless you request the materials by following the instructions on the Notice or on the website referred to on the Notice.

If you own shares of common stock in more than one account for example, in a joint account with your spouse and in your individual brokerage account you may have received more than one Notice. To vote all of your shares of Common Stock, please follow each of the separate proxy voting instructions that you received for your shares of Common Stock held in each of your different accounts.

We expect to send the Notice to most of our stockholders by mail or email beginning on or about March 28, 2013.

#### What information does the Notice contain?

The Notice includes, among other matters: (i) information on the date and time of the Annual Meeting of stockholders and items to be considered at such meeting; (ii) a brief description of the items to be voted on at the Annual Meeting and the Board of Directors voting recommendation with regard to each item; (iii) information regarding the website where the proxy materials are posted; (iv) various methods by

which a stockholder may

2

request paper or electronic copies of the proxy materials; and (v) instructions on how to vote by Internet, by telephone, by mail or in person at the Annual Meeting.

#### If I have previously indicated that I want to get ICE proxy materials electronically, will I get them electronically this year?

Yes. If you previously elected to receive proxy materials electronically, this year you will receive the Notice and you will not receive paper copies of the proxy materials. If you have previously agreed to electronic delivery of our proxy materials but wish to receive paper copies of the materials for the 2013 Annual Meeting or for future meetings, please follow the instructions on the Notice you received to request paper copies.

#### How do I vote?

You may submit your proxy with voting instructions in one of three ways:

By Internet. Go to <u>www.proxyvote.com</u> and follow the instructions for Internet voting, which can also be found on the enclosed proxy card. You will be required to provide your assigned control number located on the proxy card. Internet voting is available 24 hours a day. If you choose to vote by Internet, then you do not need to return the proxy card. To be valid, your vote by Internet must be received by 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time, on May 16, 2013.

*By Telephone*. By calling the toll-free number for telephone voting that can be found on the enclosed proxy card (800-690-6903). You will be required to provide your assigned control number located on the proxy card. Telephone voting is available 24 hours a day. If you choose to vote by telephone, then you do not need to return the proxy card. To be valid, your vote by telephone must be received by 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time, on May 16, 2013.

**By Mail.** If you request printed copies of the proxy materials to be sent to you by mail, complete the proxy card, sign and date it, and return it in the postage-paid envelope we have provided. To be valid, your vote by mail must be received by 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time, on May 16, 2013.

You may also vote your shares in person at the Annual Meeting. (See What do I need to do to attend the Annual Meeting? below.)

If your shares of Common Stock are held in street name (i.e., through a bank, broker or other nominee), your proxy materials include a voting instruction form from the institution holding your shares. The availability of telephone or Internet voting will depend upon the institution s voting processes. Please contact the institution holding your shares of Common Stock for more information.

#### What do I need to do to attend the Annual Meeting?

You may also attend the Annual Meeting and vote your shares in person by ballot. If you plan to attend the Annual Meeting in person you will need to bring proof of your ownership of Common Stock as of the close of business on March 19, 2013.

If you hold shares of Common Stock in street name and would like to vote in person at the Annual Meeting, you will need to bring an account statement or other acceptable evidence of ownership of Common Stock as of the close of business on March 19, 2013. Alternatively, you may contact the institution in whose name your shares are registered and obtain a proxy from that institution and bring it to the Annual Meeting.

#### How can I revoke my proxy or substitute a new proxy or change my vote?

You may revoke a proxy at any time before it is exercised by:

filing a written revocation with the Secretary of ICE;

submitting a proxy bearing a later date (by Internet, telephone or mail) that is received no later than the deadline specified on the proxy card; or

voting in person at the Annual Meeting.

3

#### **Table of Contents**

Please note, however, that under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange (the NYSE), any beneficial owner of our Common Stock whose shares are held in street name by a NYSE member brokerage firm may revoke its proxy and vote its shares in person at the Annual Meeting only in accordance with applicable rules and procedures as employed by such beneficial owner's brokerage firm.

Attending the Annual Meeting will not automatically revoke a proxy that was submitted by Internet, telephone or mail.

#### If I submit a proxy by Internet, telephone or mail, how will my shares be voted?

If you properly submit your proxy by one of these methods, and you do not subsequently revoke your proxy, your shares will be voted in accordance with your instructions.

If you sign, date and return your proxy card but do not give voting instructions, your shares will be voted as follows: **FOR** the election of ICE s director nominees; **FOR** the advisory resolution on executive compensation; **FOR** the approval of the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Employee Incentive Plan; **FOR** the approval of the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan; **FOR** the ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013; and otherwise in accordance with the judgment of the persons voting the proxy on any other matter properly brought before the Annual Meeting.

#### If I hold my shares in street name through a broker and do not provide voting instructions, can my broker still vote my shares?

Under the rules of the NYSE, brokers that have not received voting instructions from their customers 10 days prior to the meeting date may vote their customers—shares in the brokers—discretion on the proposal regarding the ratification of the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm because such matter currently is deemed a—routine—matter under NYSE rules. In addition, certain member brokers will only vote uninstructed shares in the same proportion as the instructions received by that broker from all other stockholders.

NYSE rules provide that the election of directors, the advisory resolution on our executive compensation, the approval of the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Employee Incentive Plan and the approval of the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan are non-discretionary matters, which means that member brokers that have not received instructions from the beneficial owners of shares of Common Stock do not have discretion to vote the shares held by those beneficial owners on the election of directors, the advisory resolution on our executive compensation, the approval of the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Employee Incentive Plan and the approval of the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan.

#### How many votes are required to transact business at the Annual Meeting?

A majority of all issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting constitutes a quorum (*i.e.*, the minimum number of shares that must be present or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting in order to transact business). Subject to the rules regarding the votes necessary to adopt the proposals discussed below, abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present. Broker non-votes—are proxies returned by brokerage firms for which no voting instructions have been received from beneficial owners. Once a share is represented for any purpose at the Annual Meeting, it will be deemed present for quorum purposes for the remainder of the meeting (including any meeting resulting from any adjournments or postponements of the Annual Meeting, unless a new record date is set).

#### How are votes counted?

#### **Election of Directors**

Our Amended and Restated Bylaws provide for a majority vote standard in the election of directors in uncontested elections. This means that a majority of the votes cast by stockholders entitled to vote for or

#### **Table of Contents**

against the election of a director nominee must be voted for the director nominee in order for that director nominee to be elected. A director who fails to receive a majority of for votes will be required to tender his or her resignation. An abstention will not be treated as a vote for or against the election of any nominee and will have no effect on the outcome of the vote.

#### Advisory Resolution on Our Executive Compensation

Under our Amended and Restated Bylaws, the affirmative vote of a majority of votes cast by the stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is required to approve the advisory resolution on our executive compensation. An abstention from voting on this matter will be treated as present for quorum purposes. However, since an abstention is not treated as a vote for or against the matter, it will have no effect on the outcome of the vote.

#### Approval of the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Employee Incentive Plan

Under our Amended and Restated Bylaws, the affirmative vote of a majority of votes cast by stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is required to approve the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Employee Incentive Plan. An abstention from voting on this matter will be treated as present for quorum purposes. However, since an abstention is not treated as a vote for or against the matter, it will have no effect on the outcome of the vote.

#### Approval of the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan

Under our Amended and Restated Bylaws, the affirmative vote of a majority of votes cast by stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is required to approve the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan. An abstention from voting on this matter will be treated as present for quorum purposes. However, since an abstention is not treated as a vote for or against the matter, it will have no effect on the outcome of the vote.

## Ratification of the Appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as Our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2013

Under our Amended and Restated Bylaws, the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is required to ratify the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm. An abstention from voting on this matter will be treated as present for quorum purposes. However, since an abstention is not treated as a vote for or against the matter, it will have no effect on the outcome of the vote.

#### Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes

In the cases of the election of directors, the advisory resolution on our executive compensation, the approval of the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Employee Incentive Plan, the approval of the IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. 2013 Omnibus Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan and the approval of the ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP, only votes cast for or against will be considered; abstentions and broker non-votes will not be treated as a vote for or against any of these proposals and therefore will have no effect on the vote.

#### Where and when will the voting results be available?

We will file the official voting results on a Current Report on Form 8-K within four business days after the Annual Meeting. If the official results are not available at that time, we will provide preliminary voting results in the Form 8-K and will provide the final results in an amendment to the Form 8-K as soon as they become available.

#### Who pays for the expenses of this proxy solicitation?

In addition to soliciting proxies through the mail and by email pursuant to the SEC Notice and Access rules, we may solicit proxies through our directors, officers and employees in person and by telephone or facsimile. We have engaged Morrow & Co., LLC, 470 West Avenue, Stamford, CT 06902 to assist us in the solicitation of proxies and the anticipated cost of such engagement is approximately \$7,000. Brokerage firms, nominees, custodians and fiduciaries also may be requested to forward proxy materials to the beneficial owners of shares held of record by them. We will pay all expenses incurred in connection with the solicitation of proxies.

#### This Proxy Statement and Our Annual Report are available at www.proxyvote.com.

The Annual Report of IntercontinentalExchange, Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 (the Annual Report ), which includes our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 (the Form 10-K ), is being made available with this Proxy Statement to our stockholders. Stockholders are referred to the Annual Report for financial and other information about us. The Annual Report is not a part of this Proxy Statement. This Proxy Statement and the Annual Report are also available on our website at <a href="https://www.theice.com">www.theice.com</a>. We will also provide a copy of the Annual Report for no charge upon written or verbal request. See <a href="https://www.theice.com">Distribution of Certain Documents</a> below.

Also, we are required to file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC). Copies of these filings are available through our website at www.theice.com or the SEC s website at www.sec.gov. We will furnish copies of our SEC filings (without exhibits), including our Form 10-K, without charge to any stockholder upon written or verbal request to us at IntercontinentalExchange, Inc., 2100 RiverEdge Parkway, Suite 500, Atlanta, Georgia 30328, Attn: Investor Relations, telephone: 770-857-4700, e-mail ir@theice.com.

In addition, the charters of our Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are available on our website at <a href="https://www.theice.com">www.theice.com</a>. We also provide our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which includes our Whistleblower Policy, our Board Communication Policy and our Board of Directors Governance Principles on our website at <a href="https://www.theice.com">www.theice.com</a>. We will also provide a printed copy of these documents to stockholders upon request.

#### **Distribution of Certain Documents**

SEC rules permit us to deliver a single copy of the Proxy Statement and our Annual Report to any household not participating in electronic proxy material delivery at which two or more stockholders reside, if we believe the stockholders are members of the same family. This practice, known as householding, is designed to reduce our printing and postage costs. However, if any stockholder residing at such an address wishes to receive a separate copy of this Proxy Statement or our Annual Report, he or she may contact us at IntercontinentalExchange, Inc., 2100 RiverEdge Parkway, Suite 500, Atlanta, Georgia 30328, Attn: Investor Relations, telephone: 770-857-4700, e-mail: *ir@theice.com*, and we will deliver those documents to such stockholder promptly upon receiving the request.

If you are receiving multiple copies of our annual report and proxy statement, you may request householding in the future by also contacting Investor Relations. Stockholders of record residing at the same address and currently receiving multiple copies of the proxy statement may request householding by contacting our registrar and transfer agent, Computershare Trust Company, N.A. via phone at (888) 404-6332 or by mail at 250 Royall Street, Canton, MA 02021. Beneficial owners may request householding by contacting their broker or bank.

6

#### ITEM 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

#### **Board of Directors**

Under our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws, our Board of Directors sets the number of directors who may serve on the Board of Directors. The size of our Board of Directors is currently set at 11 directors and presently consists of 11 directors. All of our current directors are nominated for re-election and all of our directors are elected annually for a one-year term expiring at the next annual meeting of stockholders. Each director will hold office until his or her successor is duly elected and qualified or until the director s earlier resignation or removal.

All of our directors are elected by majority vote in an uncontested election. A director who fails to receive a majority of for votes will be required to tender his or her resignation to our Board of Directors. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will then act on an expedited basis to determine whether to accept the director s resignation and will submit such recommendation for prompt consideration by our Board of Directors. Our Board of Directors expects the director whose resignation is under consideration to abstain from participating in any decision regarding that resignation. Our Board of Directors and our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may consider any factors they deem relevant in deciding whether to accept a director s resignation.

On December 20, 2012, we entered into a merger agreement, which was amended and restated on March 19, 2013, pursuant to which ICE will acquire NYSE Euronext under a newly formed holding company, IntercontinentalExchange Group, Inc. In connection with the completion of the acquisition of NYSE Euronext, which we expect will occur in the second half of 2013, our Board of Directors will become the Board of Directors of IntercontinentalExchange Group, Inc. and will expand the size of the Board to 15 directors and will appoint four new directors from NYSE Euronext.

#### Nominees for Election as Directors at the 2013 Annual Meeting

On the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, our Board of Directors has nominated the persons named below for election as directors at the Annual Meeting, each to serve for a one-year term expiring at the next annual meeting of stockholders in 2014. All of the nominees currently are members of the Board of Directors. Our Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, has determined that each of our non-employee directors is independent in accordance with the listing standards of NYSE and our Board of Directors Governance Principles as described below under *Corporate Governance Independent Non-Employee Directors*. In addition, for a discussion of the qualifications of the director nominees considered by our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, see the below information under *Biographical Information* and *Corporate Governance Nomination of Directors*. In 2012, our Board of Directors unanimously waived the mandatory retirement age in our Board of Directors Governance Principles for incumbent director Sir Robert Reid and the waiver is for a period of two years. The Board of Directors approved this waiver due to Sir Robert Reid s valuable service as Chairman of the boards of directors of ICE Futures Europe and ICE Clear Europe, each a wholly-owned subsidiary, and his broad knowledge of the energy markets and business acumen.

Each of the nominees has confirmed that he or she expects to be able to continue to serve as a director until the end of his or her term. If, however, at the time of the Annual Meeting, any of the nominees named below is not available to serve as a director (an event which the Board of Directors does not anticipate), all the proxies granted to vote in favor of such director s election will be voted for the election of such other person or persons, if any, recommended by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. Proxies cannot be voted for a greater number of directors than the 11 nominees named in this Proxy Statement. For a discussion of our policy regarding qualification and nomination of director candidates, see *Corporate Governance Nomination of Directors* below. Set forth below are the nominees names, biographical

7

information, age, summary of qualifications and the year in which each director joined the ICE Board of Directors:

Name Charles R. Crisp

#### **Biographical Information**

Age Since 65 2002

Mr. Crisp is the retired President and Chief Executive Officer of Coral Energy, a Shell Oil affiliate responsible for wholesale gas and power activities. He served in this position from 1999 until his retirement in October 2000, and was President and Chief Operating Officer from January 1998 through February 1999. Prior to that, he served as President of the power generation group of Houston Industries, he served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Tejas Gas Corporation from 1988 to 1996, he served as a Vice President, Executive Vice President and President at Houston Pipeline Co. from 1985 to 1988, he served as Executive Vice President of Perry Gas Co. Inc. from 1982 to 1985 and he was with Conoco, Inc., where he held various positions in engineering, operations and management from 1969 to 1982. Mr. Crisp serves on the Board of Directors of ICE Futures U.S., our subsidiary. In addition, he serves as a director of EOG Resources, Inc., AGL Resources, Inc. and Targa Resources, Corp. He holds a B.S. degree in Chemical Engineering from Texas Tech University and completed the Program for Management Development at Harvard Graduate School of Business. In light of Mr. Crisp s broad knowledge of the energy markets and related businesses, his service on the boards of other public companies and the experience he has gained and contributions he has made during his tenure as a director of ICE, our Board, based upon the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, has concluded that Mr. Crisp should be re-elected to our Board.

Jean-Marc Forneri

53 2002

Mr. Forneri is founder and senior partner of Bucephale Finance, a boutique M&A firm specializing in large transactions for French corporations, foreign investors and private equity firms. For the seven years prior to Bucephale s founding, he headed the investment banking business of Credit Suisse First Boston in Paris. He was Managing Director and Head of Credit Suisse First Boston France S.A., and Vice Chairman, Europe. Prior to that, he was a Partner of Demachy Worms & Cie Finance from 1994 to 1996, where he was in charge of investment banking activities of Group Worms. He is also a director of Safran SA and Balmain SA, and is a member of the Supervisory Board of Grand Port Maritime de Marseille. He holds a B.S. in Political Science from the Ecole Nationale d Adminstration. In light of his extensive financial services background, merger and acquisition experience and international business experience, as well as the contributions he has made during his tenure as a director of ICE, our Board, based upon the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, has concluded that Mr. Forneri should be re-elected to our Board.

8

Name Senator Judd A. Gregg

#### **Biographical Information**

Age Since 66 2011

Senator Gregg spent over three decades in public office, most recently serving as the U.S Senator of New Hampshire from 1993 to 2011. During his tenure in the Senate, Senator Gregg served on a number of key Senate Committees including Budget; Appropriations; Government Affairs; Banking, Housing and Urban Affairs; Commerce, Science and Transportation; Foreign Relations; and Health, Education, Labor and Pensions. He served as the Chairman and Ranking Member of the Health, Education, Labor and Pensions Committee and the Chairman and Ranking Member of the Senate Budget Committee, as well as chairman of various sub-committees. Senator Gregg served as Governor of New Hampshire from 1989 to 1993 and as a member of the U.S. House of Representatives from New Hampshire s 2nd district from 1981 to 1989. Senator Gregg also serves on the Board of Directors of ICE U.S. OTC Commodity Markets, our subsidiary. Senator Gregg is a director at Honeywell International, Inc. and an International Advisor at Goldman Sachs. Senator Gregg earned an undergraduate degree from Columbia University and a Juris Doctor and a Master of Laws from Boston University School of Law. Senator Gregg presently teaches at Dartmouth College as the College s first Distinguished Fellow. In light of Senator Gregg s extensive legislative, regulatory and public policy background, our Board, based upon the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, has concluded that Senator Gregg should be re-elected to our Board.

Fred W. Hatfield

58 2007

Mr. Hatfield is the founder of Hatfield Advisory Services. Mr. Hatfield serves on the Board of Directors of ICE U.S. OTC Commodity Markets and ICE Futures U.S., Inc., where he serves as Chairman of the Board, and serves on the Board of Managers of ICE Clear Credit, all of which are our subsidiaries. He served as a member of the Obama Economic Policy Advisory Committee and prior to that, Mr. Hatfield served as a Public Policy Advisor at Patton Boggs, LLP from 2006 to 2007 and he was a Commissioner at the Commodity Futures Trading Commission from 2004 to 2006. Mr. Hatfield served as Chief of Staff to former Senator John Breaux (D-LA) from 1995 to 2004 and former House Majority Whip Tony Coelho (D-CA) from 1980 to 1989. He has over twenty years experience in the areas of energy, private equity/venture capital/hedge funds, and financial services and products. Mr. Hatfield served as Deputy Commissioner General of the U.S. Pavilion at the World s Fair in Lisbon, Portugal in 1998. He has a B.A. degree from California State University. In light of Mr. Hatfield s extensive regulatory and legislative background and his experience in the sectors mentioned above, his service on the boards of our subsidiaries and the knowledge and experience he has gained and contributions he has made during his tenure as a director of ICE, our Board, based upon the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, has concluded that Mr. Hatfield should be re-elected to our Roard

9

Name

Terrence F. Martell, Ph.D

#### **Biographical Information**

Director Age Since

Dr. Martell is the Director of the Weissman Center for International Business at Baruch College/CUNY, where he is also the Saxe Distinguished Professor of Finance. As Director of the Weissman Center for International Business, Dr. Martell oversees a myriad of international programs and projects. His particular area of expertise is international commodity markets and he teaches and conducts research in this area. Dr. Martell also serves as the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of ICE Futures U.S. and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of ICE Clear U.S., and serve